
 

 
 

November 4, 2019 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in Regular Meeting on Monday, 
November 4, 2019 at 6:00 PM in the Cooperative Extension Conference Room, 128 Water 
Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Johnson, Phelps, Riddick, Sexton and Walker were 
present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board 
Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.   
 

 Chair Johnson called the meeting to order. Commissioner Sexton gave the invocation; 
County Manager Potter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Chair Johnson made an addition under Other Items: 9A Approval 

for County Offices to Close for the Employee Christmas Luncheon on December 6. 
Commissioner Phelps added item 5A:  ¼ cent sales tax referendum 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) Resolution: FEMA Public Assistance Designation of Agent 
d) Riverlight Transit Document:  Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) Policy and 

Procedures   
e) Petition for McNair Road Addition 

 
Chair Johnson asked that the address box on Item c) gets fixed.   

 
Commissioner Sexton seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC FORUM:  None. 

 
REPUBLIC SERVICES:  Mr. Kavanaugh, District Manager and Mr. Dehner, General 

Manager of Republic Services spoke to the Board and presented the following information. 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 



 

 
 
 
Commissioner Phelps asked if Republic Services will put out a holiday schedule for 

Veterans Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas.  Mr. Kavanaugh said Republic Services recognizes 
Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and New Year’s Day.  Mr. Potter said Republic Services lets 
the County Manager’s Office know when/if their schedule changes (due to weather, truck 
difficulties, etc.) and we put it on the County’s Facebook page and relay that information to 
callers if they call in.  Commissioner Phelps said everyone doesn’t have Facebook and asked if 
this information be put in the paper.  Mr. Potter said he will mention it in his radio broadcast.  
The service will move by one day on these holidays. 

 
Mr. Jones asked why they don’t recycle Styrofoam.  Mr. Kavanaugh said it is not 

included in the items that Republic Services can collect. ECBC in Greenville dictates what 
Republic Services can and can’t recycle due to their process and what they can handle.  

 
Mr. Potter said that recycling is going through a major shift throughout the country. 

There is not as robust a market for those materials.   
 
REPORT TO THE PEOPLE:  Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative Extension Director, 

spoke to the Board.  She explained that Cooperative Extension made a video and focused on one 
of their 4-Hrs.  For the first time, she is fully staffed and her building doesn’t leak!   Ms. 
Liverman said she would have a look back at the year at a future Commissioners’ meeting with 
the numbers of kids in programs and programs offered, etc.  Ms. Liverman said she still is doing 
Medicare enrollment until sometime in December.  
 

PRE-AUDIT BOOK KEEPING UPDATE:  Mr. Potter’s email to the Board is below, 
along with Mr. Best’s report and the letter from and response to the LGC. 

 



 



 



 



 

 



 

 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 Mr. James Best, CPA addressed the Board.  He mentioned that auditor’s will not be able 
to participate in the County’s closeout in future years (new law). 

 



 

Chair Johnson asked Mr. Best if he feels the County has taken care of the segregation of 
duties.  Mr. Best said he did not get into that process.  Ms. Dixon said that Finance now has 
procedures in place to avoid having this being a finding in the future. Commissioner Phelps said 
staff should talk to the auditor to see why that finding was made.  Chair Johnson suggested 
Finance work with the new auditor to see if they feel the same way about this past finding.   

 
Commissioner Sexton asked if Ms. Dixon feels the pre-audit has been beneficial.  Ms. 

Dixon said absolutely.  Commissioner Sexton asked Ms. Dixon if she feels she needs to have this 
pre-audit done each year.  Ms. Dixon said yes she does.   

 
Commissioner Sexton asked what Mr. Best’s recommendation is on the software.  Mr. 

Best said the County should buy the software that integrates with Finance.  
 
Mr. Potter said Mr. Best also mentioned the County should have a depreciation program. 

Ms. Dixon said she thinks there is one in Edmunds but must get it to “talk” to the Tax software.  
 
Commissioner Phelps asks Mr. Best if he thinks that the same findings will appear this 

year in the audit.  Mr. Best said no, the County’s audit should be significantly cleaner. 
Commissioner Phelps asks if the County will need Mr. Best’s services in the future or can the 
County staff handle it.  Mr. Potter said he feels that the County will need Mr. Best’s services 
next year and will build it in to the Finance budget.  Time spent will be less because the County 
has already worked with Mr. Best and done a cleanup.  Ms. Dixon said she feels like next year 
her and her staff can handle it, but may want Mr. Best to assist just to make sure they do it right. 

 
¼ CENT RESOLUTION:  Commissioner Phelps said he thought this item would have 

been on tonight’s agenda but was not, so he added it. 
 
Commissioner Phelps asked what the deadline is for adoption of the resolution on this 

matter.  Mr. Potter said it can be done at the December meeting.  Commissioner Phelps asked 
what the County is going to do to market this better this time so everyone understands it is a tax 
on those coming through the County as well as residents. Mr. Potter said Ms. Rouse has been 
doing some research on trying to figure out the best time (primary vs general election) to put this 
forward. Mr. Potter said personally he is leaning more towards the general election. Mr. Potter 
said even though the County can’t ‘earmark’ the funds, we can put forth what those funds may 
be used for. 

 
Mr. Potter said at the last meeting this item would come back to the Board in November 

or December.  He would have liked to have had it ready for tonight’s meeting, but other items 
precluded that. Mr. Potter feels the County should try to use a strategy that shows by approving 
this referendum that it will help the County to not have a County-wide tax increase in the near 
future. 

  
Mr. Potter said he will be bringing a budget amendment for marketing for the referendum 

and the resolution to the December meeting. 
 
Commissioner Phelps said folks have to realize that they will benefit from it. He said he 

doesn’t know if tying it to the hospital pension fund may make it appealing to a wider audience 
or maybe just referencing the hospital.   Commissioner Phelps said he thinks it might do well to 
have a special election (but he is not advocating for this).  



 

 
 Mr. Potter wants the Board to tell him if they want this referendum on the primary ballot 
or general election ballot and what they would like to see as marketing tools.  
 

STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE:  Mr. Potter addressed the Board and discussed his memo 
below. 

 

 



 

 



 

 
Mr. Potter said that the Strategic Plan Steering Committee reached a consensus on a 

revamped Mission Statement and Vision Statement for the County.  Mr. Potter is bringing them 
to the Board tonight for adoption.  

 



 

Commissioner Phelps asked if it was the intention of the Steering Committee to have the 
“…” in the Mission Statement.  Mr. Potter said yes. Commissioner Phelps asked why the 
Steering Committee is changing the Mission Statement.  Mr. Potter said the Steering Committee 
felt it need updating.  Commissioner Phelps asked if Strategic Plan will follow the Mission 
Statement.  Mr. Potter said he felt it needed to cover a broad area. 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to revise the Mission Statement to read 
“Washington County will improve, promote and protect the health and welfare of our 
citizens.” Commissioner Riddick seconded, but asked to amend Commissioner Phelps 
motion to add “It is our mission to provide exceptional public services in a fiscally 
responsible manner, to meet the diverse needs for our residents, visitors and business 
community.” Commissioner Phelps agreed with the amendment.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
Commissioner Phelps asked about the Vision Statement.  Mr. Potter said this was the best 

compromise from the group.  Discussion ensued. Ms. Sandra Floyd, citizen in the audience, said 
to add “learn”. 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to revise the Vision Statement to read 

“Washington County will become the preferred destination to live, learn, work, and play in 
northeastern North Carolina.”  Commissioner Sexton seconded, motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Walker said the Steering Committee needs a facilitator to keep the group 

on track.  Commissioner Phelps said we should reach out to UNC SOG again.  He went on to say 
that the County reached out to them in the past and Ms. Lydia Altman from the UNC-SOG 
Kenan Institute offered to come for a cheap price but the Board opted to use an in-house 
facilitator.  Chair Johnson also recommended that Mr. Potter reach out to Patrice Roessler who is 
with UNC-SOG now. 
 

AQUA’S EVALUATION OF THE COUNTY’S WATER SYSTEM:  Mr. Potter 
addressed the Board and discussed his memo below. 

 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
Chair Johnson stated that the Board realizes there are many issues dealing with water 

production.  Although Washington County is breaking even at this time, the future holds the 
replacement of an ever aging infrastructure and compliance of EPA regulations.  The Board 
hopes that AQUA has some answers for this and long term supply availability. 

 
Commissioner Phelps thanked Ms. Sandra Floyd, citizen from Roper, for the info she 

sent the Commissioners and the questions she had about the County’s water system. 
 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to have AQUA perform a study on 

Washington County’s water system.  Commissioner Riddick seconded.  Commissioner 
Sexton asked had AQUA’s information been brought to the Towns.  Commissioner Sexton said 
the Board needs to be prepared to decide if we are willing to turn the County’s system over to 
AQUA depending on what their study shows.  Discussion ensued.  Ms. Floyd, citizen from 
Roper, said what motivated her to write was based on her water in Roper--it is terrible. Motion 
passed 4 ayes (Commissioners Johnson, Phelps, Riddick and Walker) and 1 nay 
(Commissioner Sexton). 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT, BUDGET AMENDMENTS/TRANSFERS:   Ms. 
Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget amendments and her report that was in the 
Commissioners’ package.  

 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the abovementioned Budget 
Amendments and Transfers as presented.  Commissioner Riddick seconded, motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIRMAN, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ATTORNEY, 
CLERK OR FINANCE OFFICER: 
 

Mr. Potter said work on Courthouse elevator starts tomorrow. 
 

Ms. Dixon thanked the Board for letting Mr. Best work with the Finance Office on the pre-audit. 
 

Commissioner Phelps asked how long the repair of the elevator will take.  It is inconveniencing a 
lot of people.  Mr. Potter said he cannot give an estimate of how long it will take. 
 

Mr. Potter talked to the Board and said that he would like the Board’s approval to close the 
County offices on Friday, December 6, 2019 from 12:30 pm – 3:30 pm for the County Employee’s 
Christmas Luncheon and he would like to give the employees the remainder of that day off. (The 
luncheon will be from 1:00 pm – 3:00 pm.)  

 
Commissioner Phelps asked if Mr. Potter coordinated this with the Clerk of Courts office.  Mr. 

Potter said yes we have as much as possible and are aware that not all the County offices are able to 
close.  

 
Commissioner Sexton made a motion to let the County Offices close from 12:00 PM 

– 2:00 PM on December 6, 2019 for the Employee’s Christmas Luncheon.  Commissioner 
Phelps seconded. Motion carried with 3 ayes (Commissioners Phelps, Sexton and Walker) 
and 2 nays (Commissioners Johnson and Riddick). 
  

Commissioner Sexton made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and § 143.318.11(a)(6) personnel.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 
At 9:00 PM, back in Open Session with no further business to discuss, Commissioner 

Phelps made a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Walker seconded, motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 

           Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
           Chair                  Clerk to the Board    
 
 


